
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

DANE COUNTY WISCONSIN 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2019-12 

 

PETITION FOR THE ALTERATION AND IMPROVEMENT 

OF AN AT-GRADE CROSSING 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Shorewood Hills proposes to adopt alterations and improvements previously 

made to the at-grade crossing of University Bay Drive, a public street with the tracks of the Wisconsin 

Southern Railroad, and 

 

WHEREAS, the alteration and improvement of the crossing was necessary to promote public safety and 

convenience by converting University Bay Drive from 3 lanes of vehicle traffic (two in the southbound 

and one northbound direction) into 4 lanes of vehicle traffic (three in each the southbound and one in the 

northbound direction) along with 2 bike lanes for the purposes of reducing intersection congestion and 

allowing for multimodal public use in a safer manner, and 

 

WHEREAS, the alteration and improvement of the crossing included the relocation and reconfiguration of 

the cantilever mounted signal on the north side of the crossing, and  

 

WHEREAS, the alteration and improvements were constructed in 2016, and  

 

WHEREAS, Sections 86.13 and 195.29 Wisconsin Statutes authorize the Office of the Commissioner of 

Railroads to determine whether the alteration and improvement of the crossing is necessary to promote 

public safety and convenience, to determine the necessary warning devices for the new crossing, and to 

apportion all costs for the crossing, including the costs of any automatic warning devices, and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of the Village of Shorewood Hills 

hereby directs the Village of Shorewood Hills staff to take all necessary steps to petition the Office of the 

Commissioner of Railroads for an investigation and order to approve the alteration of the crossing, to 

determine the necessary warning devices, and to apportion the costs for the crossing of University Bay 

Drive with the tracks of the Wisconsin Southern Railroad in the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane 

County.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Village of Shorewood Hills staff shall 

comply with Chapter 195, Wisconsin Statutes and RR 1.025, Wisconsin Administrative Code in the filing 

of the petition.  

 

Dated this 15th day of July, 2019. 

 

 

    APPROVED: _____________________________ 

      Dave Benforado, Village President 

 

 

    ATTEST: _____________________________ 

      Karla Endres, Village Clerk 





Shared Solar Participation Fee Allocation

Meter ID Site Address Site Name

Max No. of

Solar Shares

Participation Fee

(One-time charge)

General

Fund

Sewer

Fund

Pool

Fund

Marina

Fund

Stormwater

Fund

Water

Fund

E331225 810 Shorewood Bl Village Hall 222 10,489.50$                7,342.65$    524.48$        1,048.95$    209.79$        314.69$        1,048.95$    

E331265 1008 Shorewood Bl DPW Building 113 5,339.25$                   3,737.48$    266.96$        533.93$        106.79$        160.18$        533.93$        

E203574 4502 Old Middleton Rd Blackhawk Maintenance 0 N/A

E323624 4502 Old Middleton Rd Cold Storage Building 2 94.50$                        23.63$          23.63$          23.63$          23.63$          

E326031 900 Shorewood Bl Street Lights 3 141.75$                      141.75$        

E313167 2705 Marshall Ct Street Lights 3 141.75$                      141.75$        

E221233 901 Swarthmore Ct PATH Pool/Community Center 9 425.25$                      212.63$        212.63$        

E201759 3302 Blackhawk Dr Four Corners Park 0 N/A

E166258 3100 Harvard Dr Heiden Haus 1 47.25$                        47.25$          

E336463 901 Swarthmore Ct Pool/Community Center 0 N/A

E278980 3336 Lake Mendota Dr Sewer Lift Station 10 472.50$                      472.50$        

E332935 901 Swarthmore Ct Pool Concessions 15 708.75$                      708.75$        

E289545 3400 Lake Mendota Dr McKenna Boathouse 0 N/A

E136837 3700 Lake Mendota Dr Marina Quonset 0 N/A

E327406 3302 Blackhawk Dr Water Lift Station 9 425.25$                      425.25$        

E331274 3561 Tallyho Water Lift Station 135 6,378.75$                   6,378.75$    

Totals: 522 24,664.50$                11,647.13$  1,287.56$    2,504.25$    316.58$        498.49$        8,410.50$    

*Assuming current electric rates inflation of 2% annually

Allocation for Village Hall and DPW Building

Fund Expenses Percentage

100 General $3,899,719 70%

200 Sewer $294,645 5%

210 Pool $529,404 10%

220 Marina $85,724 2%

500 Stormwater $177,698 3%

600 Water $554,339 10%

Total $5,541,529
General

70%

Sewer
5%

Pool
10%

Marina
2%

Stormwater
3%

Water
10%

Page 1



Acct Rate Meter ID Site Address

Max No.

of

Solar Shares

SS2.0

Participation Fee

(One time charge)

Avg Monthly Bill 

Increase, Year 1

Avg Monthly Bill 

Increase, 25 

Year Life*

Est annual kWh 

generated

Solar 

REC's 

retired

lbs CO2 

removed

Gasoline 

Vehicles 

removed

Equivalent 

PV system 

size (kW dc)

17067471 Cg-4A E331225 810 Shorewood Bl 222 $10,489.50 $28 ($69) 72,150 72.2 116,162 14 38.9

11021144 Cg-4A E331265 1008 Shorewood Bl 113 $5,339.25 ($12) (85)$                    36,725 36.7 59,127 7 19.8

24119836 Cg-5 E203574 4502 Old Middleton Rd 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

28748077 Cg-5 E323624 4502 Old Middleton Rd COLD 2 $94.50 $1 ($1) 650 0.7 1,047 0 0.4

21730890 Cg-5 E326031 900 Shorewood Bl 3 $141.75 $1 ($1) 975 1.0 1,570 0 0.5

27527225 Cg-5 E313167 2705 Marshall Ct 3 $141.75 $1 ($1) 975 1.0 1,570 0 0.5

26531665 Cg-5 E221233 901 Swarthmore Ct PATH 9 $425.25 $3 ($3) 2,925 2.9 4,709 0 1.6

11020120 Cg-5 E201759 3302 Blackhawk Dr 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

10954998 Cg-5 E166258 3100 Harvard Dr 1 $47.25 $0 ($0) 325 0.3 523 0 0.2

10052678 Cg-4B E336463 901 Swarthmore Ct 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

11090776 Cg-5 E278980 3336 Lake Mendota Dr 10 $472.50 $4 ($4) 3,250 3.3 5,233 0 1.8

19316090 Cg-5 E332935 901 Swarthmore Ct STAND 15 $708.75 $5 ($6) 4,875 4.9 7,849 0 2.6

11090784 Cg-5 E289545 3400 Lake Mendota Dr 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

10052496 Cg-5 E136837 3700 Lake Mendota Dr 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

11020112 Cg-5 E327406 3302 Blackhawk Dr WTR 9 $425.25 $3 ($3) 2,925 2.9 4,709 0 1.6

13973367 Cg-4A E331274 3561 Tallyho 135 $6,378.75 $45 ($30) 43,875 43.9 70,639 8 23.6

Totals: 522 24,664.50$                     78.74$               (203.89)$            169,650 169.65 273,137 29.4 91.35

*Assuming current electric rates inflation of 2% annually

Annual rate increases over last 25 years:

Cg-4 3.89%

Cg-5 3.62%

Cg-3 5.14%

Real Discount Rate (dreal) = the rate at which future costs are discounted to the present (accounts for the time value of money)

Nominal Discount Rate (dnominal) = The rate at which future costs are discounted to the present (accounts for the time value of money and inflation)

dnominal = (1 + dreal) x (1 + i) - 1

Net Present Value (NPV) = CFt/(1+d)t  - CF0

Page 2





















July 10, 2019

Stormwater Utility

Cash at end of 

year

 Operating 

Revenues Debt Issued

 Operating 

expenses Debt Payments Expense +Debt

2007 ($45,526.00) $109,672.00 $119,016.00 $119,016.00

2008 $7,464.00 $147,464.00 $136,237.00 $53,736.00 $53,736.00

2009 $450,829.00 $145,855.00 $630,000.00 $61,644.00 $99,563.00 $161,207.00

2010 $836,868.00 $147,798.00 $430,000.00 $53,741.00 $57,135.00 $110,876.00

2011 $652,006.00 $147,851.00 $78,365.00 $95,799.00 $174,164.00

2012 $420,652.00 $148,347.00 $145,000.00 $100,974.00 $96,337.00 $197,311.00

2013 $283,111.00 $146,999.00 $90,686.00 $111,557.00 $202,243.00

2014 $222,655.00 $148,436.00 $102,354.00 $104,995.00 $207,349.00

2015 $182,498.00 $147,367.00 $115,444.00 $108,169.00 $223,613.00

2016 $157,064.00 $147,830.00 $110,329.00 $110,663.00 $220,992.00

2017 $97,915.00 $148,356.00 $142,465.00 $100,891.00 $243,356.00

2018 $37,281.00 $147,772.00 $113,301.00 $99,821.00 $108,425.00 $208,246.00

2019 (est.) ($14,593.00) $152,996.00 $115,100.00 $80,810.00 $195,910.00

Total $1,886,743.00 $1,454,538.00 $1,243,675.00 $1,074,344.00 $2,318,019.00

Capital Paid and Grants 442,040.00

 Operating 

expenses Debt Payments Expense +Debt  Revenue 

Year-end

Surplus

Cummulative

Surplus

Total Revenue 2,334,004.00 2% increase/yr 2020 117,000.00$        79,570.00$          196,570.00$        211,380.00$        14,810.00$          $217.00

2021 119,340.00$        78,081.00$          197,421.00$        211,380.00$        13,959.00$          $14,176.00

2022 121,726.00$        76,562.00$          198,288.00$        211,380.00$        13,092.00$          $27,268.00

2023 124,160.00$        79,759.00$          203,919.00$        211,380.00$        7,461.00$            $34,729.00

2024 126,643.00$        82,593.00$          209,236.00$        211,380.00$        2,144.00$            $36,873.00

2025 129,175.00$        40,837.00$          170,012.00$        211,380.00$        41,368.00$          $78,241.00

2026 131,758.00$        39,667.00$          171,425.00$        211,380.00$        39,955.00$          $118,196.00

2027 134,393.00$        38,568.00$          172,961.00$        211,380.00$        38,419.00$          $156,615.00

2028 137,080.00$        27,574.00$          164,654.00$        211,380.00$        46,726.00$          $203,341.00

2029 139,821.00$        31,604.00$          171,425.00$        211,380.00$        39,955.00$          $243,296.00

2030 142,617.00$        30,536.00$          173,153.00$        211,380.00$        38,227.00$          $281,523.00

Cummulative Surplus does not 

include additional capital projects

$1,508,406.00

$326,653.00

$149,754.00

$79,971.00

$7,399.00

$182,073.00

Capital 

Improvements

$170,855.00

$157,100.00

$434,601.00

Rate Information Current and Going Forward 
Rates are based on Equivalent Residential Units. (ERU) Every single family  home is one ERU
For purposes of calculating non residential  fees one ERU = 2941 sq ft of impervious
669 residential ERU 
560  commercial multi family
126 public authority
1355 total ERU
ERU rate = $9.18 per month
$149,266 per year
Every home pays $110.16 per year
Every $1.00 increase in ERU rate = $17,000 increase in annual revenue
Example: Increase rate to $13.00 per month $211,380 in annual revenue.  41% increase

Y:\Finance Committee\2019 Packets\stormwater summary (2).xlsx





 

 

1 of 2 

 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

Finance Committee 

Approved Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, June 12, 2019 
 

1. Call to Order – Finance Committee Chairperson Mark Lederer called the meeting to 

order at 5:35 pm. 

 

2. Roll Call Committee – Members present were Mr. Lederer, John Imes, Sean Cote, and 

Gard Strother. Also in attendance were Vicki Hellenbrand of Baker Tilly, Village 

Administrator Karl Frantz and Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk David 

Sykes. 

 

3. Note Compliance with open meeting laws – Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been 

properly posted and noticed. 

 

4. Review/approve February 13, 2019 Finance meeting minutes 

 Mr. Strother moved and Mr. Lederer second a motion to approve the February 13, 2019 

minutes with a grammatical correction and clarification on one vote. 

 Vote: 4-0 (approved). 

 

5. Review and consider recommending acceptance of the audited 2018 financial 

statements including presentation and Q and A with Baker Tilly audit team 
Vicki Hellenbrand, Partner at Baker Tilly, presented a draft highlight package of the 2018 

Financial Statements (FS) for the Village. The audit has a “clean opinion” which means 

the Village’s finance statements are in-line with GASB standards. We use those standards 

to be easily compared to other communities by bondholders. Ms. Hellenbrand reviewed 

the Village’s General Fund (GF) balance, comprised of the non-spendable, assigned and 

unassigned categories, is ~$127K lower than year-end 2017. Those categories are 

detailed on page 41 of the FS. 

Mr. Frantz explained that the non-spendable fund balance dropped by ~$184K because of 

the TIF 4 repayment of an advance for the GF. The unassigned fund balance increased 

from 2017 but 2018 was the first time the Village really used fund balance to balance the 

budget. Thus, the overall GF balance went down. Mr. Frantz cautioned that the Village 

should be watchful on the utilization of fund balance. 

Ms. Hellenbrand reviewed the unassigned fund balance compared to a percentage of 

expenses. The Village’s internal policy is to be between 15-25%. The Village has done 

well to maintain that level. She discussed the flood expenses and possible FEMA 

reimbursements. Mr. Frantz added that there might be an opportunity to exceed the levy 

limits for unreimbursed disaster expenses. 

Ms. Hellenbrand reviewed the Village’s general obligation debt compared to the debt 

limit. It dropped from ~60% to ~50% from 2017 to 2018 because the Village has paid off 

some debt. She feels that the Village is in good condition because much of that debt is 

related to TIF districts and utilities that have revenue sources to pay back the debt. 

She reviewed general obligation debt compared to non-capital expenses. This ratio is a 

little above bond agency recommendations, but she feels it is all right compared to our 



 

 

2 of 2 

 

peers in small communities with little non-capital expenses. Again, the TIF districts 

comprise a large part of the debt and can pay their portion. 

She highlighted revenues and expenses, which have a similar breakdown to our peers. 

The majority of the expenses are in public safety and public works. Expenses came in 

higher than budgeted mainly because of flood expenses and police part-time officer 

expenses. Revenues came in higher than budgeted because of insurance claims, including 

~$92K for the 2017 computer server crash (paid in 2018). 

Ms. Hellenbrand reviewed a comparison of the other Village funds from 2017 to 2018. 

The pool fund debt is going down. The capital fund is stable. The TIF districts are 

improving. The water and sewer utilities are not paying the advances from the capital 

fund back as quickly as expected, mainly due to undetected water main leaks in 2017 and 

2018. However, the Village has a better system of leak detection now and the utilities 

should be in a good position in the future. 

Mr. Frantz added that the stormwater utility is using up its fund balance. It will probably 

run a deficit by 2020. The Village will need to either reduce expenses or raise revenues 

(fees). 

Ms. Hellenbrand reviewed the Governance and Management letter. The letter lists two 

material deficits: 1) Internal Controls and 2) Control over the Financial Statements. These 

weaknesses are similar to those listed in prior year audits. She said 95% of her other 

clients have similar material deficits. The internal controls deficits relate to outside 

contract retainage not being booked monthly (done by the auditors annually) and 

segregation of duties, which is a product of having a small staff. The auditors looks at the 

internal controls and design the audit to identify and test for possible fraud. The control 

over the FS is required simply because the Village uses an outside audit service rather 

completing the FS themselves. 

Mr. Lederer moved and Mr. Cote seconded a motion to recommend that the Board 

acknowledge receipt of the draft financial statements. 

Vote: 4-0 (approved). 

 

6. Set next meeting date. Topics to include: sustainability plan, stormwater utility fee, 

financial planning 

The Committee did not discuss this item. The next regular meeting date is tentatively 

scheduled for Wednesday, July 10, 2019. 

 

7. The meeting was adjourned at 6:57 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

David Sykes 

Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk 



 

Page 1 of 4 

APPROVED MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 

The Monday, June 10, 2019 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order at 7:00 pm by 

Chair Dave Benforado. Members present were: Mr. Benforado, Deb Remington, Earl Munson, 

Brauna Hartzell and John Imes. Jim Etmanczyk and Karl Wellensiek were excused. Also present 

was Karl Frantz, Village Administrator, Scott Harrington of Vandewalle and David Sykes, 

Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk. About twenty visitors were in the audience. 

 

Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and noticed. 

 

Consider request for placement of an accessory structure shed in the front yard at 2910 

Harvard Drive 

Mr. Benforado explained that Kathy Killian, 2910 Harvard Drive, would like permission to place 

a shed in her front yard. 

Mr. Frantz indicated that the Village revised the zoning code related to accessory structures a few 

years ago to only allow them to be located in the rear or side yard. Accessory structures are not 

allowed in front yards without the approval of the Plan Commission. There is no requirement for 

a public hearing or conditional use process for this particular accessory use, just Plan Commission 

approval. 

Ms. Killian referred to her letter to the Commission explaining that it is the most logical place a 

shed could be placed. There is an existing gravel pad just off the driveway and plenty of green 

screening for a smallish shed to be placed next to the driveway. 

Mr. Benforado asked if she had talked to her neighbors about a possible shed. Ms. Killian said the 

Etmanczyks were supportive and she has e-mailed Mr. Ahmann but had not heard back yet. 

Mr. Munson feels the ordinance is meaningless if the Plan Commission can approve exceptions to 

the ordinance. Mr. Frantz agreed that the ordinance might need to be reconsidered, possibly adding 

a conditional use process. The history of the previous change came about due to sheds appearing 

around the Village. The ordinance was also changed to ease restrictions with regard to rear- and 

side-yard setbacks. 

Mr. Imes asked if any sheds in front yards have been approved. Mr. Frantz said there have not 

been any that he can remember in the past 7+ years. 

Ms. Remington said the exception language in the ordinance seems to indicate thought about 

exceptions was considered when the ordinance was developed. 

Ms. Hartzell asked about the topography of the back yard. Ms. Killian confirmed that it is very 

sloped and the only logical place for a shed is the front yard. 

Mr. Benforado reminded the Commission that a request for a shed in the front yard on Lake 

Mendota Drive was denied a few years ago. He said he was sympathetic to the homeowner’s 

circumstances and appreciates her coming to the Plan Commission for approval. 

Mr. Imes feels the Commission has some discretion and can make decisions on a case-by-case 

basis. He wants to know more details about the shed. 

Ms. Hartzell agrees with Mr. Imes wanting to know more about the size and details on the 

screening. 

Mr. Frantz said that if the Commission wanted to allow it, the Commission could put conditions 

on the shed (i.e. screening, rationale for approval) and record them in some type of document that 

could possibly be recorded with the register of deeds to maintain the information in the future. 

Ms. Remington said this discussion reminds her of the request by the Reynolds on Lake Mendota 

Drive to put a fence in their front yard. The fence was determined to be a structure and not allowed 



 

Page 2 of 4 

in the front yard on Lake Mendota Drive, but in that instance, the neighbors had a negative reaction 

to the fence. 

Mr. Benforado said that based on the remarks he has heard, he will not support the request because 

of the potential changes in the future to the shed, green screening, etc. 

Mr. Frantz said that regardless of this outcome, he has the sense that the ordinance may need to be 

reconsidered. 

No action taken. 

 

Status report on University Avenue corridor flood remediation projects 

Mr. Benforado stated that minutes from Stormwater Committee meeting were included in the 

materials packet and are on-line. AE2S has completed stormwater model runs requested by the 

Village (in addition to those requested by the City of Madison). The City Engineers believe the 

most optimal solution (cost and feasibility) is a tunnel from the Midvale Boulevard/University 

Avenue/Rose Place area to Lake Mendota (under the Blackhawk golf course). It may be possible 

to add the tunnel to the existing University Avenue reconstruction project and qualify for 60% 

federal funding assistance. The Madison-area Planning Organization (MPO) has not spoken on the 

addition of the tunnel yet, but the City Engineers are optimistic of its chances because it would 

mitigate flooding along the University Avenue corridor. On Wednesday, June 12, the Village 

Board will consider joining the City of Madison in a contract with AE2S to determine feasibility 

and cost estimates for the tunnel. The Village’s portion of the ~$69K contract would be ~$11K. 

The Stormwater Committee reviewed all of the AE2S stormwater model runs and the large tunnel 

turned out to be the best and most cost-effective option at this point.  

Mr. Frantz added that extending the box culvert from Shorewood Boulevard to Grand Avenue 

would cost ~$13M and would only have a marginal impact on University Avenue flooding. That 

money may be better used elsewhere. The current estimate for the tunnel is ~$26M. AE2S is 

subcontracting with a world-renowned tunnel-engineering firm. The tunnel will need a very large 

catchment area to get water into the pipe. Preliminary estimates require about an acre of land in 

the Midvale Boulevard/University Avenue/Rose Place area for the catchment basin. The existing 

intergovernmental agreement for University Avenue reconstruction between the City of Madison 

and Shorewood Hills may need to be amended to incorporate the tunnel work. Everything is 

contingent on obtaining federal assistance funding because neither municipality could afford the 

projects without federal assistance. 

 

Update on Village Sustainability Plan and Plan Commission review/input in July 

Cara Silverman of the ad hoc Sustainability Committee will present the draft Sustainability Plan 

at the Commission’s July meeting and receive feedback. 

 

Adopt resolution recommending public participation process for Comprehensive Plan 

amendment 

Mr. Benforado recused himself from the discussion at 7:52 pm and sat in the audience. 

Mr. Imes chaired the meeting and introduced the resolution recommending the public participation 

process. 

Scott Harrington of Vandewalle reminded Commissioners that the State Statutes require a 

resolution adopting a public participation plan as a first step for a possible amendment to the 

Village’s Comprehensive Plan. The public participation plan allows for the incorporation of all the 

previous work to date into the record for a possible amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Mr. Munson wanted to clarify if this was for Garden Homes exclusively. Mr. Harrington indicate 

that it is predominantly intended for Garden Homes but could be expanded to other areas of the 

Village if the Commission felt it was appropriate. 



 

Page 3 of 4 

Mr. Imes pointed out that the public participation plan includes time for public comment occurring 

at each meeting. Mr. Harrington said there is some flexibility to when the public comment would 

occur during meetings. 

Mr. Munson moved and Ms. Hartzell seconded a motion to approve Plan Commission Resolution 

2019-01 Recommending the adoption of a public participation plan for an amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

Vote: Approved 4-0. 

 

Presentation of concept plan by Degen and Associates for redevelopment in the Garden 

Homes subdivision with possible discussion 

Tom Degen and his team presented their preliminary design work for possible redevelopment of 

Garden Homes to be considered as part of the Comprehensive Plan amendment. He summarized 

the property ownership (43 total lots, 2 already converted to commercial, he owns 16 lots that 

were destroyed by flooding, he owns 8 more homes, leaving 17 other homes), surrounding land 

uses, existing flood threats and his plan for redevelopment on Burbank Place. His team focused 

their design on moderate rain events that have affected Garden Homes, not the major rain events. 

The larger events will need a larger mitigation effort but his redevelopment plan could address the 

more chronic smaller flooding events that happen every year. Garden swales, curb and gutter, 

retention chambers, piping to convey water away are elements of the design and potential easement 

for the tunnel to the lake. He reviewed the proposed residential density and tax proceeds that could 

fund the project. 

The proposed redevelopment would be done in two phases. Phase 1 would be a four-story 

apartment building on the east side of Burbank Place. Phase 2 would be four 4-unit townhomes on 

the west side of Burbank Place. The building heights would step down from the Credit Union to 

the residential homes on Maple Terrace. 

Dale Streitenberger of JLA Architects discussed the character and context of the community 

related to his design of the apartments and townhomes. He designed the rooflines, dormers and 

gables to fit into the context of the neighborhood. It is designed to accommodate active older adults 

with accessibility, community amenities and the ability to age-in-place. However, the 

redevelopment would be marketed to everyone. The apartment would be about 70’ x 300’ with 40-

50 units. Parking and living space would be flood proofed at about 4’ above the road. 

Mr. Degen compared his proposed redevelopment with many of the Vandewalle redevelopment 

objectives. 

Ms. Remington asked if the development would be marketed towards seniors. Mr. Degen 

responded that the design would be attractive to active, older adults but it would not be restricted 

to seniors. 

Mr. Munson asked if the townhomes would be for sale. Mr. Degen said the townhomes and 

apartments would all be rental units (with the possibility of converting to condominiums in the 

future, if desired). 

Mr. Munson asked if there was any consideration of affordable housing units. Mr. Degen felt that 

affordable housing would be difficult financially due to the stressors on the project. He feels that 

if the flooding problems could be solved, this would be a great location for housing and it could 

potentially unlock the value of the surrounding properties. 

Mr. Imes asked about the makeup of the units. Mr. Degen said it would be a mix of 1, 1+ or 2 

bedroom units. 

The audience members were concerned about the effect of the development on the other homes in 

Garden Homes; size of the development; and marketing to active, older adults rather than younger 

families. There was also concern that the new development would displace more water than it is 

retaining. 



 

Page 4 of 4 

The Commission will take this information under advisement for consideration at a future meeting. 

 

Mr. Benforado rejoined the meeting at 9:15 pm. 

 

Update on Public Health and Safety Committee recommendation on keeping of dwarf goats 

and Plan Commission consideration of zoning code changes necessary 

Mr. Frantz reported that a resident asked about keeping dwarf goats. The matter was referred to 

the Public Health & Safety Committee (PHS) for consideration. PHS found no public health 

problem and referred the matter to the Plan Commission. Mr. Frantz has done some research on 

urban livestock. He found that some areas near Chicago and on the west coast allow keeping goats 

with restrictions on breeds, numbers, neutered males, etc. There are no nearby communities that 

allow keeping of goats. If allowed, it would require an amendment to language in the Zoning Code. 

More information will be provided for the July Commission meeting. 

Ms. Hartzell asked about the resident’s reference to a 6’ fence. Mr. Frantz indicated that a 

maximum of a 4’ fences is allowed in the Code, but that might be adequate. 

Ms. Remington asked if potbelly pigs are allowed. Mr. Frantz said they are not. However, the 

Commission may want to consider an urban livestock ordinance that would deal with exotic pets. 

Mr. Benforado suggested it might be possible to allow goats on a 1-year provisional basis. 

 

Update on possible options to revise comp plan 

Mr. Benforado reviewed the Comprehensive Plan update required by the State every 10 years. He 

and Mr. Frantz have been talking about the update since the summer of 2018. The August 2018 

flooding event delayed plans to begin the update process. They met with Gary Becker (formerly 

of Vierbicher Associates, Inc.) to gauge his interest and availability to work with the Village on 

the Comprehensive Plan update. Mr. Becker was the principle author of the original 

Comprehensive Plan in 2009. They suggested that the process could be started in January 2020 

and completed by December 2020 with the Board considering a recommendation from the Plan 

Commission to approve a new Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Becker is considering the process and 

will develop a scope of work and cost estimate. 

 

Minutes: May 14 

Mr. Benforado suggested one correction to when he rejoined the meeting. Mr. Munson moved and 

Ms. Remington seconded a motion to approve the May 14, 2019 minutes with the correction. 

Vote: Approved 5-0. 

 

Next Meeting 

The Commission’s next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, July 9, 2019 at 7:00 pm. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:44 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

David Sykes 

Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk 



              
 

MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS  

Public Works Committee 

 

Date and Time: Monday, May 13, 2019 – 7:00 P.M. 

Location: Village Hall – 810 Shorewood Boulevard 

 

 The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Bailey at 7:00p.m. 

 
On call of the roll, members present were Chair Tracy Baily, Rick Chappell, Cara Coburn Faris, and 

Laura Valderrama, Chris Petykowski, Shabnam Lofti and Farah Kaiksow was excused. Others present 

included Village Engineer Brian Berquist, John Mitmoen, Crew Chief and Karl Frantz, Village 

Administrator 

 

Compliance with the open meeting law was noted  

 

Introductions of members and Committee purview – Members and staff introduced 

themselves. Further introductions will occur at the next meeting when it is likely more members 

will be able to attend. 

 

Consider approval of previous meeting minutes and minute taking responsibilities going 

forward and schedule/time of meeting – The previous meeting minutes were approved on a 4-0 

vote. Chair Bailey asked members to think about rotating responsibility for taking of minutes and 

to try to get them out to members for review soon after the meeting. The Committee may also 

want to discuss the standing meeting day and time when more members are present. There has 

been some interest in a later time due to other obligations. 

 

Review of criteria for Village streets calming policy and possible recommendations on 

policy - The draft policy was reviewed by the Committee.  Cara stated that she would like to 

consider a forward-looking policy that involves sustainability and a safer streets policy that is not 

just an update based on the existing one. 

 

There was focus on page 3 of the draft policy and the criteria to be utilized. There was a 

suggestion that 85th percentile five miles over the limit be one of the criteria. 

 

The Committee also discussed performing an inventory/assessment/ranking of all Village streets 

that would include criteria such as: 

 Blind corners 

 Length of block 

 School routes  

 Bike routes 

 Walking routes  

 Seasonal usage  

 School usage 

 # of vehicles per day   

 Speed 

 Golf course routes  



              
 

 Pool routes 

 Street width 

 Busiest streets  

 Sidewalks  

 

The Committee discussed a possible point system to apply such as one point for every 100 

vehicles, one point for every mph over the 85th percentile 25 mph and so on. 

 

Chair Bailey stated she hoped the Committee could develop a new draft within six months. 

There was discussion about the value of such an inventory and what it would accomplish, but a 

majority of members believed that it was a place to start and that the data would be helpful.  

 

Review of Edgehill Drive traffic calming options and possible recommendations – Each 

hump would cost roughly $20,000 and at least two will be needed.  Brian will develop possible 

locations. The Committee also discussed humps vs bumps and that the humps that are acceptable 

options on public streets are similar to what one sees in the City of Madison. Money is not 

budgeted for this presently. 

 

Status reports on DPW projects including Bike Path/Marshall Court, bridge replacement 

and University Avenue reconstruction and 2019 crack filling and sealcoats – The bike path 

Marshall Court project is expected to begin in June. Work has started at the University Station 

shopping center parking lot in preparation. The first public information   meeting on University 

Ave reconstruction is to be scheduled shortly. No update on crackfilling. 

 

Discussion/recommendation on Water runoff throughout the Village outside Garden 

Homes 

 

Discussion/recommendation Garden on Topping/Oak Way (from Garden Club)  

 

Discussion/recommendation on sidewalk repair at the school 

 

Discussion/recommendation parking at the school 

 

Review and possible recommendations on stormwater utility finances/rates and functions 

 

The above five items were deferred.  

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Karl Frantz  

Village Administrator 



Locust Dr

University Ave

Frey St

H
ill

d
a

le
 W

a
y

R
o

s
e

 P
l

H
ig

h
b

u
ry

 R
d

Lucia Crest

P
ri

ce
 P

l

N
 M

id
v
a

le
 B

lv
d

N
 M

e
a

d
o

w
 L

n

B
ru

c
e

 C
t

B
u

rb
a

n
k
 P

l

M
a

p
le

 T
e

r

S
a
w

y
e
r 

T
e
r

Frey St

University Ave

N
 M

id
v
a

le
 B

lv
d

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Village of Shorewood Hills
Existing Conditions Map - Rose Place Intersection

LEGEND

Streets

Building Footprints

Tax Parcels

Town & Country Engineering, Inc. makes no representation regarding the accuracy or completeness of this map

and its underlying data.  Any use or reuse of this map will be at your own risk and without liability or legal

exposure to Town & Country Engineering, Inc.  Not to be used for utility marking for purposes of Digger's Hotline.

¯

Date: 7/5/2019

0 70 14035

Feet

2912  Mar ke t p lac e  D r ive2912  Mar ke t p lac e  D r ive

Su it e  10 3Su it e  10 3

Mad ison , W I  5371 9Mad ison , W I  5371 9

(608)  273 -3350(608)  273 -3350

ww w . tce ng ine e rs . ne tww w . tce ng ine e rs . ne t

Path: J:\JOB#S\Shorewood Hills\SH-00-00\Mapping\Old Mapping\Shorewood Hills Working Map.mxd

0.8 acres

0.4 acres










	6D1 b 3580 Lake Mendota Dr-F-06.24.2019.pdf
	Sheets
	A000 - Site Plan
	A100 - Foundation
	A101 - Lower Level
	A102 - First Floor
	A103 - Roof Plan
	A104 - Elevations
	A105 - Elevations
	A106 - Wall Section


	6D1 f EROSION CONTROL PLAN_V2Robertson._6.22.19.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	existing





